	TC02-019
DOCKET NO	
N	
	DOCKET NO

Public Utilities Commission of the State of South Dakota

DATE	MEMORANDA
2/21/02	filed and Docketed;
2/2802	Steekly Filing;
3/15.02	Kouise Jarif.
41402	Order manting amendes COA;
4/4 02	Wecket Classed.

STATE PUBLISHING CO., PIERRE, SOUTH DAKOTA-SMEAD 104 SP14130

.



February 19, 2002

RECEIVED

Debra Elofson, Executive Director South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 500 E. Capitol Pierre, SD 57501

RE: New Edge Network, Inc. Docket TC99-100

Dear Director Elofson,

FEB 2 1 2002

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

On December 2, 1999 the Public Utilities Commission of South Dakota issued an Order in Docket No. TC99-100 granting a Certificate of Authority to New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks. A condition of granting that certificate required New Edge Networks to file a continuous surety bond in the sum of \$25,000. That bond was filed with the Commission on November 19, 1999 with subsequent annual renewals.

Although New Edge Networks applied for full authority in South Dakota the company is providing wholesale data/broadband services only in all service areas. In 1999 New Edge applied in every state for full authority believing that it would be cost effective and efficient to seek full authority at the outset, in the event the company's business plan were to include local exchange services in the future. The economic environment of telecommunications however, precludes New Edge from pursing that type of business and, more specifically, the company's present and future business plan is to remain in the wholesale broadband arena only.

New Edge Networks is not providing either intrastate interexchange or local exchange services. Additionally, New Edge currently has only three internet access customers located in Sioux Falls. Since New Edge does not collect deposits from its customers, I have stricken that language from our tariff and have included a revised tariff with this letter.

New Edge Networks has complied with all requirements of its authority, including annual report filing and is in good standing with the Commission.

Therefore, in light of the above information, New Edge Network, Inc. respectfully requests relief from the Commission's requirement to provide an ongoing \$25,000 surety bond.

3000 Columbia House Blvd, Suite 106 Vancouver, WA 98661-2969 Phone: 360.693.9009 Fax: 360.693.9997 www.newedgenetworks.com I may be reached at 360-906-9853 for further information or an alternative contact is Penny Bewick at 360-906-9775.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen Beigh Shotsky

Manager – External Affairs

Enclosure

Copy: Penny Bewick, Director – Regulatory Affairs Karen Cramer, South Dakota Public Utilities Commission

REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF CHARGES

APPLYING TO INTRASTATE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

WITHIN THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

BY

NEW EDGE NETWORK, INC.

D/B/A NEW EDGE NETWORKS

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the furnishing of intrastate telecommunications services within the State of South Dakota by New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks, with principal offices at 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Suite 106, Vancouver, WA 98661. This tariff is on file with the South Dakota Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at New Edge Network, Inc.'s principal place of business.

Iss	ue	d	;
100	uv	-	•

By:

Effective

SD P.U.C. Tariff No. 1 1st Revised Page 1

CHECK SHEET

Sheet No.	Revision	Sheet No.	Revision
1	Revised	29	Original
2	Revised	30	Original
3	Revised	31	Original
4	Original	32	Original
5	Original	33	Original
6	Original	34	Original
7	Original	35	Original
8	Original	36	Original
9	Original	37	Original
10	Original	38	Original
11	Original	39	Original
12	Original	40	Original
13	Revised	41	Original
14	Original	42	Original
15	Original	43	Original
16	Original	44	Original
17	Original	45	Original
18	Original		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original		
26	Original		
27	Original		
28	Original		

Issued:

Effective

TABLE OF CONTENTS

<u>Sheet</u>

TITLE SHEET	Г		
CHECK SHE	ЕТ		1
TABLE OF C	ONTEN	VTS	2
EXPLANATI	ON OF	SYMBOLS	4
PRICE LIST H	FORMA	T SHEETS	5
DEFINITION	S		6
SECTION 1.	APPLI	CATION OF TARIFF	9
SECTION 2	RULE	S AND REGULATIONS	10
	2.1	Undertaking of the Company	
	2.2	Terms and Conditions	
	2.3	Application for Service	
	2.4	Assignment or Transfer	
	2.5	Contracts	12
	2.6—	-Deposits	13
	2.7	Notices	
	2.8	Payment and Rendering of Bills	14
	2.9	Disputed Bills	
	2.10	Discontinuance and Restoration of Service	
	2.11	Information to be Provided to the Public	19
	2.12	[Intentionally left blank]	19
	2.13	Credit Allowance for Interruptions	19
	2.14	Service Connections	22
	2.15	Limitation of Service Equipment or Facilities	27
	2.16	Prohibited Uses	
	2.17	Non-Routine Installation	30
	2.18	Obligations of the Customer	31

Issued:

Effective

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D)

Sheet

	2.19	Liability of the Company	
	2.20	Indemnification	
	2.21	Maintenance and Testing	
	2.22	Determination of Jurisdiction of Mixed Interstate	
		and Intrastate Service	40
SECTION 3.		DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES	41
SECTION 4.		RATES AND CHARGES	42
	4.1	Local Loop	43
	4.2	Aggregation	
	4.3	Non-recurring Charges	

Issued:

Effective

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

- (C) To signify a changed listing, rule or condition which may affect rates or charges.
- (D) To signify discontinued material, including but not limited to a listing, rate, rule or condition.
- (I) To signify an increase.
- (M) To signify material relocated from or to another part of tariff schedule with no change in text, rate, rule, or condition.
- (N) To signify new material including a listing, rate, rule, or condition.
- (R) To signify a reduction.
- (T) To signify a change in wording of text but no change in rate, rule, or condition.
- (Z) To signify a Correction

Issued:

By:

Effective

PRICE LIST FORMAT SHEETS

- A. Sheet numbering Sheet numbers appear in the upper right hand corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the price list. When a new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheets added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.
- B. Sheet revision numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc., the Commission allows in their price list approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the price list page in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect.
- C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level:

2. 2.1. 2.1.1. 2.1.1.A. 2.1.1.A.1 2.1.1.A.1.(a). 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I. 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i). 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i).(1)

D. Check Sheets: When a price list filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet accompanies the price list filing. The check sheet lists contained in the price list, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made to it. (i.e. the format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The price list user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on file with the Commission.

Issued:	Effective
By:	Daniel Moffat, President
	New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks
	3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106
	Vancouver, Washington 98661

DEFINITIONS

Advance Payment: Part or all of a payment required before the start of Service.

Commission: South Dakota Public Service Commission.

Company: New Edge Network Incorporated d/b/a New Edge Networks, the issuer of this tariff.

Customer: The person, firm or corporation which orders Service and is responsible for the payment of charges and compliance with the terms and conditions of this tariff.

Dedicated: A facility or equipment system or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific Customer or End User.

DSL: Digital Subscriber Line.

End Office: The switching system office or serving wire center where loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and/or to trunks.

End User: A person, firm or corporation who is designated by the Customer as a user of Company's Service furnished to the Customer. The End User must be specifically identified in the Application for Service.

End User Premises Equipment: Equipment provided by the Customer, the End User, or any party other than the Company that is located on the End User's premises and is connected to the Company's network.

FCC: Federal Communications Commission.

Issued:

By:

Effective

DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Individual Case Basis: A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the Customer and at the Company's sole discretion.

Kbps: Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

Mbps: Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second.

Origination Point: The point of demarcation between the Company's facilities and those of the End User.

Premises: The space occupied by a Customer or End User in a building or buildings or contiguous property.

Recurring Charges: The monthly charges to the Customer for Services, facilities and equipment, which continues for the agreed-upon duration of the Service.

Services: The services, or combination thereof, offered by the Company and contained in this Tariff.

Service Order: The request for Company Services submitted by the Customer in the format devised by the Company. The submission of a Service Order by the Customer and confirmation thereof by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff.

Special Facilities: Any facilities, goods, supplies, products, equipment, fixtures or other installation specifically installed or constructed for Customer by Company pursuant to a negotiated agreement between Company and Customer.

Issued:

By:

Effective

<u>DEFINITIONS</u> (Continued)

Term Agreement: An agreement between the Company and a Customer for the delivery of Services for a stated minimum duration.

Termination Point: The demarcation point between Company's facilities and the Customer's facilities.

Transmission Speed: Transmission speed or rate, in bits per second (bps), as agreed to by Company and Customer.

Issued:

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

By:

SECTION 1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth rules applicable to the provision of interstate high speed digital access and high capacity private line Services using a variety of digital transmission technologies within the State of South Dakota.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

The Company undertakes to furnish Services in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this tariff.

2.2 Terms and Conditions

The Company shall have no responsibility with respect to billings, charges, or disputes related to Services used by the Customer which are not included in the Services herein including, without limitation, any local, regional or long distance services not offered by the Company. The Customer shall be fully responsible for the payment of any bills for such services and for the resolution of any disputed or discrepancies with the appropriate service provider.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.3 Application for Service

Customers desiring to obtain Service must submit Service Orders in the form and format specified by Company.

2.3.1 Cancellation of Application for Service

If a Customer cancels a Service Order after Company has commenced installation of Service, a cancellation charge may apply.

2.3.2 Cancellation of Service

Subject to cancellation charges referenced herein, the Customer may have Service discontinued upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the Company. The Company shall hold the Customer responsible for payment of all bills for Service furnished until the effective cancellation of Service. As specified in 2.10.2 below, a termination charge may apply to early cancellation of a Term Agreement.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.4 Assignment or Transfer

All Service provided under this tariff is directly or indirectly controlled by the Company and the Customer may not transfer or assign the use of Service (except in the case of a merger or sale of substantially all the assets of Customer) without the express prior written consent of the Company, and then only when such transfer or assignment can be accomplished without interruption of the use or change in the location of Service. All terms and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to any and all such transferees or assignees. The Customer shall, unless otherwise expressly agreed by the Company in writing, remain liable for the payment of all charges due under this tariff or any applicable agreements.

2.5 Contracts

The Company may also offer intrastate exchange access services on a nontariffed, contractual basis. The terms and conditions of this tariff do not apply to such contractual services, except to the extent expressly incorporated into a contract.

Issued:

By:

Effective

Effective

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

(D)

2.6 Deposits

- A. The Company may, in order to safeguard its interests, require any Customer to make a deposit prior to or at any time after Service is provided to the Customer, to be held by the Company as a guarantee of the payment of rates and charges.
- B. A deposit may not exceed: (i) the actual or estimated rates and charges, including non recurring charges, for the Service for a one month period; or (ii) the charges that would apply for the minimum period for a Service which has a minimum term of more than one month, plus any applicable termination charge. The fact that a deposit has been made in no way relieves the customer from complying with the Company's requirement as to the prompt payment of bills.
- C. At such time as the provision of the Service to the Customer is terminated, the amount of the deposit will be credited to the Customer's account and any credit balance which may remain will be refunded.
- D. In case of a cash deposit, for the period the deposit is held by the Company, simple annual interest will be applied to the deposit for the number of days from the date the Customer deposit is received by the Company to and including the date such deposit is credited to the Customer's account or the date the deposit is refunded by the Company.
- E. If at any time the amount of a deposit is less than required to meet the requirements specified above, the Customer shall be required to pay an additional deposit upon request.

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

By:

2.7 Notices

Any notice Company may give to a Customer shall be deemed properly given when delivered, if delivered in person, or when sent via facsimile, electronic mail or when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or other express delivery service.

- 2.8 Payment and Rendering of Bills
 - A. The Company shall bill all charges incurred by and credits due to the Customer. The Customer may choose to receive bills in either paper or electronic format. Such bills are due within thirty (30) days after the date of issuance thereof, regardless of the media utilized. The Company shall bill in advance charges for all Services to be provided during the ensuing billing period except for charges associated with Service usage. Adjustments for the quantities of Service established or discontinued in any billing period beyond the minimum period will be prorated to the number of days based on a 30 day month. The Company will, upon request and if available, furnish such detailed information as may reasonably be required for verification of the bill.
 - B. The Company shall bill for all Services rendered within 90 days of when those Services are provided.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.8 Payment and Rendering of Bills (Continued)
 - C. All bills for Service provided to the customer by the Company are due thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of the bill. If any portion of the payment is received by the Company after the payment due date as set forth above, or if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not immediately available to the Company, then a late payment penalty shall be due the Company. The late payment penalty shall be a portion of the payment not received by the payment due date times a late factor. The late factor shall be 1.5% per month (0.049315% per day) or 18% annually, or the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is the lesser. The late factor will be applied for the number of days from the payment due date to and including the date that the Customer makes the late payment funds immediately available to the Company.
 - D. Customer shall be responsible for payment of all sales, use, gross receipts, excise, access, bypass, franchise or other local, state and Federal taxes, fees, charges, or surcharges, however designated, imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of the Services rendered by Company, (excepting Company's income taxes). Such taxes shall be separately stated on the Customer's invoice.

Effective

2.9 Disputed Bills

In the event that a billing dispute occurs concerning any charges billed to the Customer by the Company, the Customer must pay the undisputed portion of the invoice in full and submit a documented claim for the disputed amount. The Customer shall submit all documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim. All claims must be submitted to the Company within 180 days of receipt of billing for those Services. If the Customer does not submit a claim as stated above, the Customer waives all rights to filing a claim thereafter. Unless disputed, the invoice shall be deemed to be correct and payable in full by Customer. If the Customer is unable to resolve any dispute with the Company, then Customer may file a complaint with this Commission:

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission State Capitol Building 500 East Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070 Phone: 1-800-332-1782 TTY: 1-800-877-1113

If the dispute is resolved in favor of the Customer and the Customer has withheld the disputed amount, no interest or penalties will apply.

Effective

2.10 Discontinuance and Restoration of Service

- 2.10.1 Cancellation by the Company
 - A. For Nonpayment: The Company may, upon ten (10) days written notice to the Customer, discontinue Service or cancel an application for Service without incurring any liability when there is an unpaid balance for Service that is overdue.
 - B. For Returned Checks: A Customer whose check or draft is returned unpaid for any reason shall be subject to discontinuance of Service in the same manner as provided for nonpayment of overdue charges.
 - C. For any violation of law or rules: A Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, for any violation of any law, rule, regulation or policy of any government authority having jurisdiction over Service, or by reason of any order or decision of a court or other government authority having jurisdiction which prohibits the Company from furnishing such Service.
 - D. For the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental authority having jurisdiction: The Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, for the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental authority having jurisdiction.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

By:

Discontinuance and Restoration of Service (cont'd) 2.10

2.10.1 Cancellation by the Company (cont'd)

- E. For Other Causes: A Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, in the event of suspected fraud or other unlawful use of the Service, or fraud or misrepresentation in any submission of information required in a Service Order or any other information submitted to Company.
- F. For any Customer filing of bankruptcy or reorganization or failing to discharge an involuntary petition therefor within the time permitted by law: The Company may immediately discontinue or suspend Service under this tariff without incurring any liability.

2.10.2 Cancellation of Term Agreement

Upon the cancellation of Service provided under a Term Agreement, an early termination charge may apply.

2.10.3 Resumption of Service

If Service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, Service shall, at the Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected to the satisfaction of Company in Company's sole and absolute discretion and Customer pays a deposit at Company's discretion. All applicable nonrecurring charges shall apply when Services are restored.

Issued:	Effective
By:	Daniel Moffat, President
	New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks
	3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106
	Vancouver, Washington 98661

2.11 Information to be Provided to the Public

The Company will use reasonable efforts to advise Customers who may be affected of new, revised or optional rates applicable to their Service.

- 2.12 [Intentionally left blank]
- 2.13 Credit Allowance for Interruptions

A credit allowance will be given on a per line basis for service interruptions, defined as any period during which any line subscribed to by the Customer hereunder and/or, if applicable, Company-provided equipment attached thereto is out of service, except as specified below. Out of service conditions are defined as complete loss of data transmission capability. Credit allowances, if any, shall be deducted from the charges payable by the Customer hereunder and shall be expressly indicated on the next bill to the Customer. An interruption period begins the earlier of when the Customer reports a malfunction in Service to the Company or Company becomes independently aware of such malfunction. A malfunction period ends when the affected line and/or associated equipment is fully operative.

- A. Credit allowances do not apply to interruptions:
 - 1) caused by the Customer, any End User or any third party;
 - 2) due to failure of power or equipment provided by the Customer or others;
 - 3) during any period in which the Company is not given access to the Premises;

Effective

2.13 Credit Allowance for Interruptions (Continued)

- 4) due to scheduled maintenance and repair; or
- 5) due to Acts of God or other events listed in section 2.19(C) below.
- B. <u>Interruption of Twenty-Four (24) Hour or Less Portion of Daily Per-</u> Line Charge

Length of Service Interruption	Credit
-Less than 4 hours	None
-4 hours up to but not including 8 hours	1/3 of day
-8 hours up to but not including 12 hours	1/ 2 of day
-12 hours up to but not including 16 hours	2/3 of day
-16 hours up to 24 hours	one day

Two or more Service interruptions of the same type to the same line/equipment of two (2) hours or more during any one twenty-four (24) hour period shall be considered as one interruption. In no event shall such interruption credits for any one line/equipment exceed one (1) day's fixed recurring charges for such line/equipment in any twenty-four (24) hour period.

 Effective
Daniel Moffat, President
New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks
3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106
Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

By:

2.13 <u>Credit Allowance for Interruptions (Continued)</u>

C. Interruptions over Twenty-Four (24) Hours

Service interruptions over twenty-four (24) hours will be credited four (4) hours for each four (4) hour period or fraction thereof. No more than one (1) full day's credit will be allowed for any period of twenty-four hours.

Issued:

Effective

2.14 Service Connections

- A. All Service along the facilities between the point identified as the Company's origination point and the point identified as the Company's termination point will be furnished by the Company, its agents or contractors.
- B. Customer shall allow Company continuous access and right-of-way to both Customer and End User Premises to the extent reasonably determined by the Company to be appropriate to the provision and maintenance of Services, equipment, facilities and systems relating to this tariff.
- C. The Company may undertake to use reasonable efforts to make available Services to a Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of and compliance by the Customer with the regulations contained in this tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by any such date and shall not be liable for any delays in commencing Service to any Customer.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.14 <u>Service Connections (cont'd)</u>
 - D. The Company undertakes to use reasonable efforts to maintain only the facilities and equipment that it furnishes to the Customer or End User. Neither the Customer or the End User may, nor permit others to, rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or otherwise tamper with any of the facilities or equipment installed by the Company, except upon the written consent of the Company.
 - E. Title to all facilities (except such equipment and/or facilities as are sold to or independently provided by a Customer or End User), including terminal equipment, shall remain with the Company. The operating personnel and the electric power consumed by such equipment on the Premises of Customer or End User shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the Customer.

Issued:

By:

Effective

Effective

SECTION 2. <u>RULES AND REGULATIONS</u>

- 2.14 Service Connections (Continued)
 - F. Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer's or End User's Premises for use in connection with the Services shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which the Company provided it.
 - G. The Company shall not be responsible for the operation or maintenance of any Customer or End User provided communications equipment. The Company may install certain Customer or End User provided communications equipment upon installation of Service; unless otherwise agreed by the Company in writing, Company shall not thereafter be responsible for the operation or maintenance of such equipment. Where such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered under this tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities; subject to this responsibility the Company shall not be responsible for:
 - 1) The proper origination of signals by Customer provided equipment or for the quality, or defects in, such signals; or
 - 2) The reception of signals by Customer provided equipment.
 - H. The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges for visits by the Company's agents or employees to the Premises when the Service difficulty or trouble report results from the improper or inappropriate use of equipment or facilities by the Customer or End User.

By:

Effective

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.14 Service Connections (Continued)

- I. In the event Company places Company equipment on Customers' premises for the purpose of furnishing service under this agreement, unless otherwise stipulated, Company is solely responsible for operating and maintaining such equipment. In the event that Customer attempts to operate or maintain any such equipment without first obtaining Company's written approval, in addition to any other remedies of Company for a breach by Customer of Customer's obligations hereunder, Customer shall pay Company for any damage to Company's equipment caused or related to such unauthorized operation or maintenance of Company's equipment upon receipt by Customer of a Company invoice therefor. In no event shall Company be liable to Customer, End User or any other person for interruption of the Service or for any other loss, cost or damage caused or related to Customer's improper or inappropriate use of Company-provided equipment.
- J. Customer agrees to allow Company to remove all Company-provided equipment from Customer or End User's premises:
 - 1) upon termination, interruption or suspension of the Service in connection with which the equipment was used; and
 - 2) for repair, replacement or otherwise as Company may determine is necessary or desirable.
- K. At the time of such removal, such equipment shall be in the same condition as when delivered to Customer or installed in Customer or End User's premises, normal wear and tear only excepted. Customer shall reimburse Company for the unamortized cost of any such equipment in the event the foregoing conditions are not met.

Issued:

By:

2.14 Service Connections (Continued)

- L. The Customer or End User is responsible for ensuring that Customer- or End User-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such Company equipment and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's employees or to other persons. Customer will submit to Company a complete manufacturer's specification sheet for each item of equipment that is not provided by the Company and which shall be attached to the Company's facilities. The Company shall approve the use of such item(s) of equipment unless such item is technically incompatible with Company's facilities. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.
- M. Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Service, and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

Effective

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.15 Limitation of Service Equipment or Facilities

- A. Service is offered subject to the provisions of this tariff and the availability of the necessary facilities and/or equipment, and is limited to the ongoing availability and capacity of the Customer's facilities as well as the facilities the Company may require from other carriers to furnish Service. The Company may decline Service Orders to or from a location where, in the Company's sole discretion, the necessary facilities or equipment are not available. The Company may discontinue furnishing Service in accordance with the terms of this tariff.
- B. The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit Service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control, or when Service is used in violation of provisions of this tariff or the law.
- C. The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its Service when available, and, as more fully set forth elsewhere in this tariff, shall not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.
- D. The Company reserves the right to discontinue Service, limit Service, or to impose requirements as required to meet changing regulatory or statutory rules and standards, or when such rules and standards have an adverse material affect on the business or economic feasibility of providing Service, as determined by the Company in its reasonable judgment.
- E. The furnishing of Service under this tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities, as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish Service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

By:

2.16 Prohibited Uses

- A. The Services of the Company shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use as to which the Customer has not obtained all governmental approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents and permits, required to be obtained by the Customer with respect thereto.
- B. The Company may require applicants for Service who intend to use the Company's offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company offerings complies with relevant laws and the Commission's regulations, policies, orders, and decisions.
- C. The Company may, without obtaining any further consent from the Customer, assign any rights, privileges, or obligations under this tariff. The Customer or End User may not assign, transfer in any manner the Service or any rights associated with the Service without the written consent of the Company.
- D. The Company may require a Customer to immediately shut down its transmission of signals if Company concludes, in its sole discretion, that such transmission is causing interference to others.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.16 Prohibited Uses (cont'd)
 - E. The Customer may not use the Services so as to interfere with or impair Service over any facilities and associated equipment, or so as to impair the privacy of any communications over such facilities and associated equipment.
 - F. A Customer or End User shall not represent that its services are provided by the Company, or otherwise indicate to its Customers that its provision of Services is jointly with the Company, without the prior written consent of the Company. The relationship between the Company and Customer shall not be that of partners or agents for one or the other, and shall not be deemed to constitute a partnership or agency agreement.

Issued:

Effective

2.17 <u>Non-Routine Installation</u>

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.18 Obligations of the Customer

The Customer (or the End User, as the case may be) shall be responsible for:

- A. The payment of all charges applicable to the Services.
- B. Damage or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer or End User or the non-compliance by the Customer or End User with the provisions of this tariff; or by fire or theft or other casualty on the premises of the Customer or End User unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company;
- C. Providing as specified from time to time by the Company any needed personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment installed on the Premises, and providing the level of power, heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper environment on such Premises;

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.18 Obligations of the Customer (Continued)
 - D. Obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for rights of way necessary to install equipment to provide Service to the Customer or End User from the minimum point of entry or the property line of the land on which the structure wherein any termination point or origination point used by the Customer or End User is placed or located, whichever is applicable, through the point of entry into the structure, throughout the structure, to the location of the equipment space. Any and all costs associated with the obtaining and maintaining of the rights of way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by the Customer. The Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to accepting a Service Order.
 - E. Providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the Premises. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, injury to Company employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.18 Obligations of the Customer (Continued)
 - F. Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of Company facilities and equipment in any Premises or the rights-of-way for which the Customer is responsible, and obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the Premises at any reasonable hour for the purpose of installing, inspecting, repairing, or, upon termination of Service as stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company;
 - G. Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No allowance will be made for the period during which Service is interrupted for such purposes.
 - H. Keeping the Company's equipment and facilities located on the Customer's premises or rights-of-way obtained by the Customer free and clear of any liens or encumbrances relating to the Customer's use of the Company's Services or from the locations of such equipment and facilities.
 - I. Providing, operating and maintaining Customer provided or End User equipment on the Premises. Conformance of Customer provided or End User premises equipment with part 68 of the FCC Rules is the responsibility of the Customer.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

- 2.19 Liability of the Company
 - A. The Services the Company furnishes are subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations specified in this tariff and to such particular terms, conditions, and limitations as set forth in the special regulations applicable to the particular Services and facilities furnished under this tariff.
 - B. The liability of the Company for damages arising out of the furnishing of these Services, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, tortious conduct or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of these Services or arising out of the failure to furnish the Service, whether caused by acts of commission or omission, shall be determined in accordance with SDCL 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1 and any other applicable law.

Issued:

Effective

- 2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)
 - C. The Company shall not be liable for, nor shall any Service Credits be extended for, any failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or of any other government, including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of any department, agency commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or any civil or military authority, national emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, unavailability of rights-of-way or materials, or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties.
 - D. The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission by any entity furnishing to the Company or to the Company's Customers facilities or equipment used for or with the Services the Company offers.
 - E. The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses due to the fault or negligence of the Customer or due to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or facilities.
 - F. Company shall not be liable for the claims of vendors supplying equipment to Customers of the Company which may be installed at premises of the Company, nor shall the Company be liable for the performance of any such vendor or vendor's equipment.

Issued:

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

By:

2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)

- G. The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations it provides for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer indemnifies and holds the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party or person(s), and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location, or use of any installation so provided.
- H. The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to the Premises resulting from the furnishing of Services, equipment, or associated wiring on such Premises or the installation or removal thereof, except where such defacement or damage is the result of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the agents or employees of the Company.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)

K. The Company shall not be liable for any damages whatsoever associated with service, facilities, or equipment which the Company does not furnish or for any act or omission of Customer or any other entity furnishing services, facilities or equipment used for or in conjunction with Service.

THE **COMPANY** WARRANTIES L. MAKES NO OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OF IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OF OTHERWISE, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF **MERCHANTABILITY** AND FITNESS FOR USE, EXCEPT Α PARTICULAR THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.20 Indemnification

The Customer and any End User, jointly and severally, shall indemnify, defend and hold the Company harmless from claims, loss, damage, expense (including attorney's fees and court costs), or liability (including liability for patent infringement) arising from: (1) any claims made against Company by any End User in connection with the delivery or consumption of Services; (2) combining with, or using in connection with facilities the Company furnished, facilities the Customer or End User furnished; or (3) use of facilities the Company furnished in a manner the Company did not contemplate and over which the Company exercises no control. In the event that any infringing use is enjoined, the Customer, at its option and expense, may obtain immediately a dismissal or stay of such injunction, obtain a license or other agreement so as to extinguish the claim of infringement, terminate the claimed infringing use, or modify such combination so as to avoid any such infringement. In addition and without limitation, the Customer and any End Users shall defend, on behalf of the Company and upon request by the Company, any suit brought or claim asserted against the Company for any such claims.

Issued:

By:

Effective

2.21 Maintenance and Testing

- A. Upon suitable notice, the Company may make such tests, adjustments, and inspections as may be necessary to maintain the Company's facilities in satisfactory operating condition. No interruption allowance will be credited to the Customer for the period during which the Company makes such tests, adjustments, or inspections.
- Β. Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or End User is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer provided facilities and equipment to Company-owned facilities and equipment. If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of Service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm.

Effective

Daniel Moffat, President New Edge Network Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Ste. 106 Vancouver, Washington 98661

Issued:

2.22 Determination of Jurisdiction of Mixed Interstate and Intrastate Service

When mixed interstate and intrastate Service is provided over a dedicated facility, the jurisdiction will be determined as follows:

- 1. If the Customer's estimate of the intrastate traffic on the Service equals 10% or more of the total traffic on that Service, the Service will be provided according to the applicable rules and regulations of this tariff.
- 2. If the Customer's estimate of the intrastate traffic on the Service is less than 10% of the total traffic on that Service, the Service will be provided according to the applicable rules and regulations of the Company's interstate tariff.
- 3. If the jurisdiction of interstate traffic on the Service changes to the extent that it alters the jurisdiction of the Service, the Customer must notify the Company of any required change in status. The affected Service will revert to the appropriate jurisdictional tariff within the next full billing cycle. No retroactive rate adjustments will apply to the period prior to the change in the Company's records. Any applicable Term Agreement will be transferred with the jurisdictional change.

Issued:

By:

Effective

SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

The Company provides data transport between End Users and its Customers using a variety of digital transmission technologies, over the Company's own facilities and/or facilities of other carriers.

Depending on distance from the Company's facilities, Services may not be available to all customers. Special construction charges may apply in each case. Company's Services are data services only and will not be accompanied by 411, 911, or other voice services. In addition to the charges specified for each Service, additional charges may apply for transfers of data per month, at certain times in excess of certain thresholds, or for certain billing, monitoring or other services. Other services may be provided by the Company on an Individual Case Basis, depending on such factors as length of loops involved, quality of loops and other factors.

Issued:

Effective

Access Services for Interstate Communication Services

Description of Services

The Company provides data transport between End-Users and its Customers using a variety of digital transmission technologies, over the Company's own facilities and/or facilities of other carriers.

Depending on distance from the Company's facilities, service may not be available to all customers. Special construction charges may apply in each case. Company's services are data services only and will not be accompanied by 411, 911, or other voice services. In addition to the charges specified for each service, additional charges may apply for transfers of data per month, at certain times, in excess of certain thresholds, or for certain billing, monitoring or other services. Other services may be provisioned by the company on an individual case basis (ICB), depending on such factors as length of loops involved, quality of loops and other factors.

Issued:

By:

Effective

4.1 Local Loop (per month)

144 kbps IDSL	\$75
160 kbps	\$75
200 kbps	\$90
416 kbps	\$125
784 kbps	\$165
1040 kbps	\$199
1.54 Mbps	\$250

Issued:

By:

Effective

4.2 Aggregation

Time From	With New Edge Provided	Without DS-3 Link
Interconnection	DS-3 link (up to 25 miles)	
First Month	\$1000	\$500
Second Month	\$2000	\$1000
Third Month	\$3000	\$1750
Fourth Month (After)	\$4000	\$2500
	Note: DS-3 links of more than 25 miles will be priced on an ICB basis.	Note: applies to customers in same collocation space as well as those who purchase or provide their own DS3 interconnection.

Issued:

Effective

4.3 Non-recurring Charges

Standard Installation	\$375
Nonstandard Installation (materials extra)	$375 + 40$ per hour after 2^{nd}
Reschedule visit due to lack of exit	\$95
Standard Inside move	\$150
Non standard in-side move (materials extra)	$$150 + 40 per hour after 2^{nd}
Outside Move	\$375
Cancellation of order—	\$50
within ILEC cancellation period	
Cancellation of order—	\$275
outside ILEC cancellation period	
Site survey (on request)	\$95
Speed Change	\$100
Inside wiring repair (materials extra)	$$95 + $40/hour after 1^{st}$

Issued:

Effective

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission WEEKLY FILINGS

For the Period of February 21, 2002 through February 27, 2002

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3705 Fax: 605-773-3809

ELECTRIC

EL02-003 In the Matter of the Petition of West River Electric Association, Inc. for a Declaratory Ruling Regarding Service Territory Rights Concerning Black Hills Power, Inc. and West River Electric Association, Inc.

West River Electric Association, Inc. (WREA) has filed a petition with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission for a declaratory ruling in regard to the following issues:

- A. Whether Black Hills Power, Inc. is rendering or has extended service within WREA's territory in violation of SDCL 49-34A-42.
- B. Whether WREA has the right to provide future electrical service to the Rapid City Waste Treatment Facility located within WREA's assigned service area.

Staff Analyst: Martin Bettmann Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 02/21/02 Intervention Deadline: 03/15/02

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

TC02-019 In the Matter of the Filing by New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks for Approval of Relief of Certification Requirement to Post Surety Bond.

In an Order dated December 8, 1999, the Commission granted New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks (New Edge) authority to provide interexchange and local exchange telecommunications services in South Dakota, subject to a continuous \$25,000 surety bond. On February 21, 2002, the Commission received a filing from New Edge requesting relief from the Commission's bond requirement.

Staff Analyst: Keith Senger Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 02/21/02 Intervention Deadline: 03/08/02

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission WEEKLY FILINGS

For the Period of February 21, 2002 through February 27, 2002

If you need a complete copy of a filing faxed, overnight expressed, or mailed to you, please contact Delaine Kolbo within five business days of this report. Phone: 605-773-3705 Fax: 605-773-3809

ELECTRIC

EL02-003 In the Matter of the Petition of West River Electric Association, Inc. for a Declaratory Ruling Regarding Service Territory Rights Concerning Black Hills Power, Inc. and West River Electric Association, Inc.

West River Electric Association, Inc. (WREA) has filed a petition with the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission for a declaratory ruling in regard to the following issues:

- A. Whether Black Hills Power, Inc. is rendering or has extended service within WREA's territory in violation of SDCL 49-34A-42.
- B. Whether WREA has the right to provide future electrical service to the Rapid City Waste Treatment Facility located within WREA's assigned service area.

Staff Analyst: Martin Bettmann Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 02/21/02 Intervention Deadline: 03/15/02

TELECOMMUNICATIONS

TC02-019 In the Matter of the Filing by New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks for Approval of Relief of Certification Requirement to Post Surety Bond.

In an Order dated December 8, 1999, the Commission granted New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks (New Edge) authority to provide interexchange and local exchange telecommunications services in South Dakota, subject to a continuous \$25,000 surety bond. On February 21, 2002, the Commission received a filing from New Edge requesting relief from the Commission's bond requirement.

Staff Analyst: Keith Senger Staff Attorney: Karen Cremer Date Docketed: 02/21/02 Intervention Deadline: 03/08/02



Received

MAR 1 5 2002

March 13, 2002

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC

Debra Elofson, Executive Director South Dakota Public Utilities Commission 500 E. Capitol Pierre, SD 57501

RE: New Edge Network, Inc. / SDPUC Docket TC02-019

Dear Director Elofson,

On February 19, 2002 New Edge Network, Inc. filed a letter request with the Commission seeking relief from the surety bond requirement in its Certificate of Authority granted on December 2, 1999 in Docket No. TC99-100.

The Commission opened Docket No. TC02-019 to act on New Edge's request. New Edge Network, Inc. has updated its tariff to comply with the Commission's restrictions on advance payments and customer deposits and enclosed is an original plus ten copies of the updated tariff.

New Edge Network, Inc. understands that if the Commission grants relief from the surety bond requirement, an Order will be issued containing the restrictions pertaining to prepaid services, advance payments and customer deposits. New Edge Network, Inc., as a wholesale broadband provider, accepts these restrictions if the Commission so orders.

I may be reached at 360-906-9853 for further information or an alternative contact is Penny Bewick at 360-906-9775.

Respectfully submitted,

Kathleen Beigh Shotsky Manager – External Affairs

Enclosure

Copy: Penny Bewick, Director – Regulatory Affairs Keith Senger, SDPUC Staff Analyst

> 3000 Columbia House Blvd, Suite 106 Vancouver, WA 98661-2969 Phone: 360.693.9009 Fax: 360.693.9997 www.newedgenetworks.com

REGULATIONS AND SCHEDULE OF CHARGES APPLYING TO INTRASTATE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

WITHIN THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

BY

NEW EDGE NETWORK, INC.

D/B/A NEW EDGE NETWORKS

This tariff sets forth the service offerings, rates, terms and conditions applicable to the furnishing of intrastate telecommunications services within the State of South Dakota by New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks, with principal offices at 3000 Columbia House Boulevard, Suite 106, Vancouver, WA 98661. This tariff is on file with the South Dakota Public Service Commission, and copies may be inspected, during normal business hours, at New Edge Network, Inc.'s principal place of business.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

Effective: December 8, 1999

CHECK SHEET

Sheet No.	Revision	Sheet No.	Revision
1	Revised	29	Original
2	Revised	30	Original
3	Revised 31		Original
4	Original	32	Original
5	Original	33	Original
6	Revised	34	Original
7	Original	35	Original
8	Original	36	Original
9	Original	37	Original
10	Original	38	Original
11	Original	39	Original
12	Original	40 [′]	Original
13	Revised	41	Original
14	Revised	42	Original
15	Original	43	Original
16	Original	44	Original
17	Original	45	Original
18	Revised		
19	Original		
20	Original		
21	Original		
22	Original		
23	Original		
24	Original		
25	Original '		
26	Original		
27	Original		
28	Original		

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Issued: November 16, 1999

Effective: December 8, 1999

SD P.U.C. Tariff No. 1 1st Revised Page 2

	Sheet
TITLE SHEET	
CHECK SHEE	1
TABLE OF CO	ITENTS2
EXPLANATIC	OF SYMBOLS4
PRICE LIST F	RMAT SHEETS5
DEFINITIONS	6
SECTION 1.	PPLICATION OF TARIFF9
SECTION 2	ULES AND REGULATIONS10
	1Undertaking of the Company102Terms and Conditions103Application for Service114Assignment or Transfer125Contracts126Deposits137Notices148Payment and Rendering of Bills149Disputed Bills1610Discontinuance and Restoration of Service1711Information to be Provided to the Public1912[Intentionally left blank]1913Credit Allowance for Interruptions1914Service Connections2215Limitation of Service Equipment or Facilities2716Prohibited Uses2817Non-Routine Installation3018Obligations of the Customer31

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONT'D)

Issued: November 16, 1999

Effective: December 8, 1999

<u>Sheet</u>

	2.19	Liability of the Company	
	2.20	Indemnification	
	2.21	Maintenance and Testing	
	2.22	Determination of Jurisdiction of Mixed Interstate	
		and Intrastate Service	
SECTION 3.		DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES	41
SECTION 4.		RATES AND CHARGES	42
	4.1	Local Loop	43
	4.2	Aggregation	
	4.3	Non-recurring Charges	

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

Effective: December 8, 1999

EXPLANATION OF SYMBOLS

- (C) To signify a changed listing, rule or condition which may affect rates or charges.
- (D) To signify discontinued material, including but not limited to a listing, rate, rule or condition.
- (I) To signify an increase.
- (M) To signify material relocated from or to another part of tariff schedule with no change in text, rate, rule, or condition.
- (N) To signify new material including a listing, rate, rule, or condition.
- (R) To signify a reduction.
- (T) To signify a change in wording of text but no change in rate, rule, or condition.
- (Z) To signify a Correction

Issued: November 16, 1999

PRICE LIST FORMAT SHEETS

- A. Sheet numbering Sheet numbers appear in the upper right hand corner of the page. Sheets are numbered sequentially. However, new sheets are occasionally added to the price list. When a new sheet is added between sheets already in effect, a decimal is added. For example, a new sheets added between sheets 14 and 15 would be 14.1.
- B. Sheet revision numbers Revision numbers also appear in the upper right corner of each page. These numbers are used to determine the most current sheet version on file with the Commission. For example, the 4th revised Sheet 14 cancels the 3rd revised Sheet 14. Because of various suspension periods, deferrals, etc., the Commission allows in their price list approval process, the most current sheet number on file with the Commission is not always the price list page in effect. Consult the Check Sheet for the sheet currently in effect.
- C. Paragraph Numbering Sequence There are nine levels of paragraph coding. Each level of coding is subservient to its next higher level:
 - 2. 2.1. 2.1.1. 2.1.1.A. 2.1.1.A.1 2.1.1.A.1.(a). 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I. 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i). 2.1.1.A.1.(a).I.(i).(1)
- D. Check Sheets: When a price list filing is made with the Commission, an updated check sheet accompanies the price list filing. The check sheet lists contained in the price list, with a cross reference to the current revision number. When new pages are added the check sheet is changed to reflect the revision. All revisions made in a given filing are designated by an asterisk (*). There will be no other symbols used on this page if these are the only changes made to it. (i.e. the format, etc. remains the same, just revised revision levels on some pages). The price list user should refer to the latest check sheet to find out if a particular sheet is the most current on file with the Commission.

Issued: November 16, 1999

DEFINITIONS

Advance Payment: Part or all of a payment required before the start of Service. (D)

Commission: South Dakota Public Service Commission.

Company: New Edge Network Incorporated d/b/a New Edge Networks, the issuer of this tariff.

Customer: The person, firm or corporation which orders Service and is responsible for the payment of charges and compliance with the terms and conditions of this tariff.

Dedicated: A facility or equipment system or subsystem set aside for the sole use of a specific Customer or End User.

DSL: Digital Subscriber Line.

End Office: The switching system office or serving wire center where loops are terminated for purposes of interconnection to each other and/or to trunks.

End User: A person, firm or corporation who is designated by the Customer as a user of Company's Service furnished to the Customer. The End User must be specifically identified in the Application for Service.

End User Premises Equipment: Equipment provided by the Customer, the End User, or any party other than the Company that is located on the End User's premises and is connected to the Company's network.

FCC: Federal Communications Commission.

Issued: November 16, 1999

DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Individual Case Basis: A service arrangement in which the regulations, rates and charges are developed based on the specific circumstances of the Customer and at the Company's sole discretion.

Kbps: Kilobits per second, denotes thousands of bits per second.

Mbps: Megabits per second, denotes millions of bits per second.

Origination Point: The point of demarcation between the Company's facilities and those of the End User.

Premises: The space occupied by a Customer or End User in a building or buildings or contiguous property.

Recurring Charges: The monthly charges to the Customer for Services, facilities and equipment, which continues for the agreed-upon duration of the Service.

Services: The services, or combination thereof, offered by the Company and contained in this Tariff.

Service Order: The request for Company Services submitted by the Customer in the format devised by the Company. The submission of a Service Order by the Customer and confirmation thereof by the Company initiates the respective obligations of the parties as set forth therein and pursuant to this tariff.

Special Facilities: Any facilities, goods, supplies, products, equipment, fixtures or other installation specifically installed or constructed for Customer by Company pursuant to a negotiated agreement between Company and Customer.

Issued: November 16, 1999

DEFINITIONS (Continued)

Term Agreement: An agreement between the Company and a Customer for the delivery of Services for a stated minimum duration.

Termination Point: The demarcation point between Company's facilities and the Customer's facilities.

Transmission Speed: Transmission speed or rate, in bits per second (bps), as agreed to by Company and Customer.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

Effective: December 8, 1999

SECTION 1. APPLICATION OF TARIFF

This tariff sets forth rules applicable to the provision of interstate high speed digital access and high capacity private line Services using a variety of digital transmission technologies within the State of South Dakota.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.1 Undertaking of the Company

The Company undertakes to furnish Services in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in this tariff.

2.2 Terms and Conditions

The Company shall have no responsibility with respect to billings, charges, or disputes related to Services used by the Customer which are not included in the Services herein including, without limitation, any local, regional or long distance services not offered by the Company. The Customer shall be fully responsible for the payment of any bills for such services and for the resolution of any disputed or discrepancies with the appropriate service provider.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.3 Application for Service

Customers desiring to obtain Service must submit Service Orders in the form and format specified by Company.

2.3.1 Cancellation of Application for Service

If a Customer cancels a Service Order after Company has commenced installation of Service, a cancellation charge may apply.

2.3.2 Cancellation of Service

Subject to cancellation charges referenced herein, the Customer may have Service discontinued upon thirty (30) days' written notice to the Company. The Company shall hold the Customer responsible for payment of all bills for Service furnished until the effective cancellation of Service. As specified in 2.10.2 below, a termination charge may apply to early cancellation of a Term Agreement.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

2.4 Assignment or Transfer

All Service provided under this tariff is directly or indirectly controlled by the Company and the Customer may not transfer or assign the use of Service (except in the case of a merger or sale of substantially all the assets of Customer) without the express prior written consent of the Company, and then only when such transfer or assignment can be accomplished without interruption of the use or change in the location of Service. All terms and conditions contained in this tariff shall apply to any and all such transferees or assignees. The Customer shall, unless otherwise expressly agreed by the Company in writing, remain liable for the payment of all charges due under this tariff or any applicable agreements.

2.5 Contracts

The Company may also offer intrastate exchange access services on a nontariffed, contractual basis. The terms and conditions of this tariff do not apply to such contractual services, except to the extent expressly incorporated into a contract.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

(D)

2.6 Deposits

- A. The Company may, in order to safeguard its interests, require any Customer to make a deposit prior to or at any time after Service is provided to the Customer, to be held by the Company as a guarantee of the payment of rates and charges.
- B. A deposit may not exceed: (i) the actual or estimated rates and charges, including non recurring charges, for the Service for a one-month period; or (ii) the charges that would apply for the minimum period for a Service which has a minimum term of more than one month, plus any applicable termination charge. The fact that a deposit has been made in no way relieves the customer from complying with the Company's requirement as to the prompt payment of bills.
- C. At such time as the provision of the Service to the Customer is terminated, the amount of the deposit will be credited to the Customer's account and any credit balance which may remain will be refunded.
- D. In case of a cash deposit, for the period the deposit is held by the Company, simple annual interest will be applied to the deposit for the number of days from the date the Customer deposit is received by the Company to and including the date such deposit is credited to the Customer's account or the date the deposit is refunded by the Company.
- E. If at any time the amount of a deposit is less than required to meet the requirements specified above, the Customer shall be required to pay an additional deposit upon request.

Issued: November 16, 1999

(D)

SECTION 2. RULES AND REGULATIONS

2.7 Notices

Any notice Company may give to a Customer shall be deemed properly given when delivered, if delivered in person, or when sent via facsimile, electronic mail or when deposited with the U.S. Postal Service or other express delivery service.

2.8 Payment and Rendering of Bills

- A. The Company shall bill all charges incurred by and credits due to the Customer. The Customer may choose to receive bills in either paper or electronic format. Such bills are due within thirty (30) days after the date of issuance thereof, regardless of the media utilized. The Company shall bill in advance charges for all Services to be provided during the ensuing billing period except for charges associated with Service usage. Adjustments for the quantities of Service established or discontinued in any billing period beyond the minimum period will be prorated to the number of days based on a 30 day month. The Company will, upon request and if available, furnish such detailed information as may reasonably be required for verification of the bill.
- B. The Company shall bill for all Services rendered within 90 days of when those Services are provided.

Issued: November 16, 1999

- 2.8 Payment and Rendering of Bills (Continued)
 - C. All bills for Service provided to the customer by the Company are due thirty (30) days from the date of issuance of the bill. If any portion of the payment is received by the Company after the payment due date as set forth above, or if any portion of the payment is received by the Company in funds which are not immediately available to the Company, then a late payment penalty shall be due the Company. The late payment penalty shall be a portion of the payment not received by the payment due date times a late factor. The late factor shall be 1.5% per month (0.049315% per day) or 18% annually, or the highest rate allowed by law, whichever is the lesser. The late factor will be applied for the number of days from the payment due date to and including the date that the Customer makes the late payment funds immediately available to the Company.
 - D. Customer shall be responsible for payment of all sales, use, gross receipts, excise, access, bypass, franchise or other local, state and Federal taxes, fees, charges, or surcharges, however designated, imposed on or based upon the provision, sale or use of the Services rendered by Company, (excepting Company's income taxes). Such taxes shall be separately stated on the Customer's invoice.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

2.9 Disputed Bills

In the event that a billing dispute occurs concerning any charges billed to the Customer by the Company, the Customer must pay the undisputed portion of the invoice in full and submit a documented claim for the disputed amount. The Customer shall submit all documentation as may reasonably be required to support the claim. All claims must be submitted to the Company within 180 days of receipt of billing for those Services. If the Customer does not submit a claim as stated above, the Customer waives all rights to filing a claim thereafter. Unless disputed, the invoice shall be deemed to be correct and payable in full by Customer. If the Customer is unable to resolve any dispute with the Company, then Customer may file a complaint with this Commission:

South Dakota Public Utilities Commission State Capitol Building 500 East Capitol Avenue Pierre, South Dakota 57501-5070 Phone: 1-800-332-1782 TTY: 1-800-877-1113

If the dispute is resolved in favor of the Customer and the Customer has withheld the disputed amount, no interest or penalties will apply.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.10 Discontinuance and Restoration of Service

- 2.10.1 Cancellation by the Company
 - A. For Nonpayment: The Company may, upon ten (10) days written notice to the Customer, discontinue Service or cancel an application for Service without incurring any liability when there is an unpaid balance for Service that is overdue.
 - B. For Returned Checks: A Customer whose check or draft is returned unpaid for any reason shall be subject to discontinuance of Service in the same manner as provided for nonpayment of overdue charges.
 - C. For any violation of law or rules: A Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, for any violation of any law, rule, regulation or policy of any government authority having jurisdiction over Service, or by reason of any order or decision of a court or other government authority having jurisdiction which prohibits the Company from furnishing such Service.
 - D. For the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental authority having jurisdiction: The Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, for the Company to comply with any order or request of any governmental authority having jurisdiction.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

2.10 Discontinuance and Restoration of Service (cont'd)

- 2.10.1 Cancellation by the Company (cont'd)
 - E. For Other Causes: A Customer shall be subject to discontinuance of Service, without notice, in the event of suspected fraud or other unlawful use of the Service, or fraud or misrepresentation in any submission of information required in a Service Order or any other information submitted to Company.
 - F. For any Customer filing of bankruptcy or reorganization or failing to discharge an involuntary petition therefor within the time permitted by law: The Company may immediately discontinue or suspend Service under this tariff without incurring any liability.

2.10.2 Cancellation of Term Agreement

Upon the cancellation of Service provided under a Term Agreement, an early termination charge may apply.

2.10.3 Resumption of Service

(D)

If Service has been discontinued for nonpayment or as otherwise provided herein and the Customer wishes it continued, Service shall, at the Company's discretion, be restored when all past due amounts are paid or the event giving rise to the discontinuance (if other than nonpayment) is corrected to the satisfaction of Company in Company's sole and absolute discretion. and Customer pays a deposit at Company's discretion. All applicable nonrecurring charges shall apply when Services are restored.

2.11 Information to be Provided to the Public

The Company will use reasonable efforts to advise Customers who may be affected of new, revised or optional rates applicable to their Service.

- 2.12 [Intentionally left blank]
- 2.13 Credit Allowance for Interruptions

A credit allowance will be given on a per line basis for service interruptions, defined as any period during which any line subscribed to by the Customer hereunder and/or, if applicable, Company-provided equipment attached thereto is out of service, except as specified below. Out of service conditions are defined as complete loss of data transmission capability. Credit allowances, if any, shall be deducted from the charges payable by the Customer hereunder and shall be expressly indicated on the next bill to the Customer. An interruption period begins the earlier of when the Customer reports a malfunction in Service to the Company or Company becomes independently aware of such malfunction. A malfunction period ends when the affected line and/or associated equipment is fully operative.

- A. <u>Credit allowances do not apply to interruptions:</u>
 - 1) caused by the Customer, any End User or any third party;
 - 2) due to failure of power or equipment provided by the Customer or others;
 - 3) during any period in which the Company is not given access to the Premises;

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.13 Credit Allowance for Interruptions (Continued)

- 4) due to scheduled maintenance and repair; or
- 5) due to Acts of God or other events listed in section 2.19(C) below.
- B. <u>Interruption of Twenty-Four (24) Hour or Less Portion of Daily Per-</u> Line Charge

Length of Service Interruption	Credit
-Less than 4 hours	None
-4 hours up to but not including 8 hours	1/3 of day
-8 hours up to but not including 12 hours	1/2 of day
-12 hours up to but not including 16 hours	2/3 of day
-16 hours up to 24 hours	one day

Two or more Service interruptions of the same type to the same line/equipment of two (2) hours or more during any one twenty-four (24) hour period shall be considered as one interruption. In no event shall such interruption credits for any one line/equipment exceed one (1) day's fixed recurring charges for such line/equipment in any twenty-four (24) hour period.

2.13 Credit Allowance for Interruptions (Continued)

C. Interruptions over Twenty-Four (24) Hours

Service interruptions over twenty-four (24) hours will be credited four (4) hours for each four (4) hour period or fraction thereof. No more than one (1) full day's credit will be allowed for any period of twenty-four hours.

Issued: November 16, 1999

- 2.14 Service Connections
 - A. All Service along the facilities between the point identified as the Company's origination point and the point identified as the Company's termination point will be furnished by the Company, its agents or contractors.
 - B. Customer shall allow Company continuous access and right-of-way to both Customer and End User Premises to the extent reasonably determined by the Company to be appropriate to the provision and maintenance of Services, equipment, facilities and systems relating to this tariff.
 - C. The Company may undertake to use reasonable efforts to make available Services to a Customer on or before a particular date, subject to the provisions of and compliance by the Customer with the regulations contained in this tariff. The Company does not guarantee availability by any such date and shall not be liable for any delays in commencing Service to any Customer.

- 2.14 Service Connections (cont'd)
 - D. The Company undertakes to use reasonable efforts to maintain only the facilities and equipment that it furnishes to the Customer or End User. Neither the Customer or the End User may, nor permit others to, rearrange, disconnect, remove, attempt to repair, or otherwise tamper with any of the facilities or equipment installed by the Company, except upon the written consent of the Company.
 - E. Title to all facilities (except such equipment and/or facilities as are sold to or independently provided by a Customer or End User), including terminal equipment, shall remain with the Company. The operating personnel and the electric power consumed by such equipment on the Premises of Customer or End User shall be provided by and maintained at the expense of the Customer.

- 2.14 Service Connections (Continued)
 - F. Equipment the Company provides or installs at the Customer's or End User's Premises for use in connection with the Services shall not be used for any purpose other than that for which the Company provided it.
 - G. The Company shall not be responsible for the operation or maintenance of any Customer or End User provided communications equipment. The Company may install certain Customer or End User provided communications equipment upon installation of Service; unless otherwise agreed by the Company in writing, Company shall not thereafter be responsible for the operation or maintenance of such equipment. Where such equipment is connected to the facilities furnished pursuant to this tariff, the responsibility of the Company shall be limited to the furnishing of facilities offered under this tariff and to the maintenance and operation of such facilities; subject to this responsibility the Company shall not be responsible for:
 - 1) The proper origination of signals by Customer provided equipment or for the quality, or defects in, such signals; or
 - 2) The reception of signals by Customer provided equipment.
 - H. The Customer shall be responsible for the payment of service charges for visits by the Company's agents or employees to the Premises when the Service difficulty or trouble report results from the improper or inappropriate use of equipment or facilities by the Customer or End User.

2.14 Service Connections (Continued)

- I. In the event Company places Company equipment on Customers' premises for the purpose of furnishing service under this agreement, unless otherwise stipulated, Company is solely responsible for operating and maintaining such equipment. In the event that Customer attempts to operate or maintain any such equipment without first obtaining Company's written approval, in addition to any other remedies of Company for a breach by Customer of Customer's obligations hereunder, Customer shall pay Company for any damage to Company's equipment caused or related to such unauthorized operation or maintenance of Company's equipment upon receipt by Customer of a Company invoice therefor. In no event shall Company be liable to Customer, End User or any other person for interruption of the Service or for any other loss, cost or damage caused or related to Customer's improper or inappropriate use of Company-provided equipment.
- J. Customer agrees to allow Company to remove all Company-provided equipment from Customer or End User's premises:
 - 1) upon termination, interruption or suspension of the Service in connection with which the equipment was used; and
 - 2) for repair, replacement or otherwise as Company may determine is necessary or desirable.
- K. At the time of such removal, such equipment shall be in the same condition as when delivered to Customer or installed in Customer or End User's premises, normal wear and tear only excepted. Customer shall reimburse Company for the unamortized cost of any such equipment in the event the foregoing conditions are not met.

2.14 Service Connections (Continued)

- L. The Customer or End User is responsible for ensuring that Customer- or End User-provided equipment connected to Company equipment and facilities is compatible with such Company equipment and facilities. The magnitude and character of the voltages and currents impressed on Company-provided equipment and wiring by the connection, operation, or maintenance of such equipment and wiring shall be such as not to cause damage to the Company provided equipment and wiring or injury to the Company's employees or to other persons. Customer will submit to Company a complete manufacturer's specification sheet for each item of equipment that is not provided by the Company and which shall be attached to the Company's facilities. The Company shall approve the use of such item(s) of equipment unless such item is technically incompatible with Company's facilities. Any additional protective equipment required to prevent such damage or injury shall be provided by the Company at the Customer's expense.
- M. Any special interface equipment necessary to achieve compatibility between the facilities and equipment of the Company used for furnishing Service, and the channels, facilities, or equipment of others shall be provided at the Customer's expense.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.15 Limitation of Service Equipment or Facilities

- A. Service is offered subject to the provisions of this tariff and the availability of the necessary facilities and/or equipment, and is limited to the ongoing availability and capacity of the Customer's facilities as well as the facilities the Company may require from other carriers to furnish Service. The Company may decline Service Orders to or from a location where, in the Company's sole discretion, the necessary facilities or equipment are not available. The Company may discontinue furnishing Service in accordance with the terms of this tariff.
- B. The Company reserves the right to discontinue or limit Service when necessitated by conditions beyond its control, or when Service is used in violation of provisions of this tariff or the law.
- C. The Company does not undertake to transmit messages, but offers the use of its Service when available, and, as more fully set forth elsewhere in this tariff, shall not be liable for errors in transmission or for failure to establish connections.
- D. The Company reserves the right to discontinue Service, limit Service, or to impose requirements as required to meet changing regulatory or statutory rules and standards, or when such rules and standards have an adverse material affect on the business or economic feasibility of providing Service, as determined by the Company in its reasonable judgment.
- E. The furnishing of Service under this tariff is subject to the availability on a continuing basis of all the necessary facilities and is limited to the capacity of the Company's facilities, as well as facilities the Company may obtain from other carriers to furnish Service from time to time as required at the sole discretion of the Company.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.16 Prohibited Uses

- A. The Services of the Company shall not be used for any unlawful purpose or for any use as to which the Customer has not obtained all governmental approvals, authorizations, licenses, consents and permits, required to be obtained by the Customer with respect thereto.
- B. The Company may require applicants for Service who intend to use the Company's offerings for resale and/or for shared use to file a letter with the Company confirming that their use of the Company offerings complies with relevant laws and the Commission's regulations, policies, orders, and decisions.
- C. The Company may, without obtaining any further consent from the Customer, assign any rights, privileges, or obligations under this tariff. The Customer or End User may not assign, transfer in any manner the Service or any rights associated with the Service without the written consent of the Company.
- D. The Company may require a Customer to immediately shut down its transmission of signals if Company concludes, in its sole discretion, that such transmission is causing interference to others.

- 2.16 Prohibited Uses (cont'd)
 - E. The Customer may not use the Services so as to interfere with or impair Service over any facilities and associated equipment, or so as to impair the privacy of any communications over such facilities and associated equipment.
 - F. A Customer or End User shall not represent that its services are provided by the Company, or otherwise indicate to its Customers that its provision of Services is jointly with the Company, without the prior written consent of the Company. The relationship between the Company and Customer shall not be that of partners or agents for one or the other, and shall not be deemed to constitute a partnership or agency agreement.

2.17 Non-Routine Installation

At the Customer's request, installation and/or maintenance may be performed outside the Company's regular business hours or in hazardous locations. In such cases, charges based on cost of the actual labor, material, or other costs incurred by or charged to the Company will apply. If installation is started during regular business hours but, at the Customer's request, extends beyond regular business hours into time periods including, but not limited to, weekends, holidays, and/or night hours, additional charges may apply.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.18 Obligations of the Customer

The Customer (or the End User, as the case may be) shall be responsible for:

- A. The payment of all charges applicable to the Services.
- B. Damage or loss of the Company's facilities or equipment caused by the acts or omissions of the Customer or End User or the non-compliance by the Customer or End User with the provisions of this tariff; or by fire or theft or other casualty on the premises of the Customer or End User unless caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the employees or agents of the Company;
- C. Providing as specified from time to time by the Company any needed personnel, equipment, space and power to operate Company facilities and equipment installed on the Premises, and providing the level of power, heating and air conditioning necessary to maintain the proper environment on such Premises;

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

- 2.18 Obligations of the Customer (Continued)
 - D. Obtaining, maintaining, and otherwise having full responsibility for rights of way necessary to install equipment to provide Service to the Customer or End User from the minimum point of entry or the property line of the land on which the structure wherein any termination point or origination point used by the Customer or End User is placed or located, whichever is applicable, through the point of entry into the structure, throughout the structure, to the location of the equipment space. Any and all costs associated with the obtaining and maintaining of the rights of way described herein, including the costs of altering the structure to permit installation of the Company-provided facilities, shall be borne entirely by the Customer. The Company may require the Customer to demonstrate its compliance with this section prior to accepting a Service Order.
 - E. Providing a safe place to work and complying with all laws and regulations regarding the working conditions on the Premises. The Customer may be required to install and maintain Company facilities and equipment within a hazardous area if, in the Company's opinion, injury to Company employees or property might result from installation or maintenance by the Company.

Issued: November 16, 1999

- 2.18 Obligations of the Customer (Continued)
 - F. Complying with all laws and regulations applicable to, and obtaining all consents, approvals, licenses and permits as may be required with respect to, the location of Company facilities and equipment in any Premises or the rights-of-way for which the Customer is responsible, and obtaining permission for Company agents or employees to enter the Premises at any reasonable hour for the purpose of installing, inspecting, repairing, or, upon termination of Service as stated herein, removing the facilities or equipment of the Company;
 - G. Making Company facilities and equipment available periodically for maintenance purposes at a time agreeable to both the Company and the Customer. No allowance will be made for the period during which Service is interrupted for such purposes.
 - H. Keeping the Company's equipment and facilities located on the Customer's premises or rights-of-way obtained by the Customer free and clear of any liens or encumbrances relating to the Customer's use of the Company's Services or from the locations of such equipment and facilities.
 - I. Providing, operating and maintaining Customer provided or End User equipment on the Premises. Conformance of Customer provided or End User premises equipment with part 68 of the FCC Rules is the responsibility of the Customer.

2.19 Liability of the Company

- A. The Services the Company furnishes are subject to the terms, conditions, and limitations specified in this tariff and to such particular terms, conditions, and limitations as set forth in the special regulations applicable to the particular Services and facilities furnished under this tariff.
- B. The liability of the Company for damages arising out of the furnishing of these Services, including but not limited to mistakes, omissions, interruptions, delays, tortious conduct or errors, or other defects, representations, or use of these Services or arising out of the failure to furnish the Service, whether caused by acts of commission or omission, shall be determined in accordance with SDCL 49-13-1 and 49-13-1.1 and any other applicable law.

2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)

- C. The Company shall not be liable for, nor shall any Service Credits be extended for, any failure of performance or equipment due to causes beyond its control, including but not limited to: acts of God, fire, flood or other catastrophes; any law, order, regulation, direction, action, or request of the United States Government, or of any other government, including state and local governments having or claiming jurisdiction over the Company, or of any department, agency commission, bureau, corporation, or other instrumentality of any one or more of these federal, state, or local governments, or any civil or military authority, national emergencies, insurrections, riots, wars, unavailability of rights-of-way or materials, or strikes, lock-outs, work stoppages, or other labor difficulties.
- D. The Company shall not be liable for any act or omission by any entity furnishing to the Company or to the Company's Customers facilities or equipment used for or with the Services the Company offers.
- E. The Company shall not be liable for any damages or losses due to the fault or negligence of the Customer or due to the failure or malfunction of Customer-provided equipment or facilities.
- F. Company shall not be liable for the claims of vendors supplying equipment to Customers of the Company which may be installed at premises of the Company, nor shall the Company be liable for the performance of any such vendor or vendor's equipment.

2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)

- G. The Company does not guarantee nor make any warranty with respect to installations it provides for use in an explosive atmosphere. The Customer indemnifies and holds the Company harmless from any and all loss, claims, demands, suits, or other action, or any liability whatsoever, whether suffered, made, instituted, or asserted by any other party or person(s), and for any loss, damage, or destruction of any property, whether owned by the Customer or others, caused or claimed to have been caused directly or indirectly by the installation, operation, failure to operate, maintenance, removal, presence, condition, location, or use of any installation so provided.
- H. The Company is not liable for any defacement of or damage to the Premises resulting from the furnishing of Services, equipment, or associated wiring on such Premises or the installation or removal thereof, except where such defacement or damage is the result of negligence or willful misconduct on the part of the agents or employees of the Company.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.19 Liability of the Company (Continued)

K. The Company shall not be liable for any damages whatsoever associated with service, facilities, or equipment which the Company does not furnish or for any act or omission of Customer or any other entity furnishing services, facilities or equipment used for or in conjunction with Service.

L. THE COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS, EXPRESS OF IMPLIED EITHER IN FACT OR BY OPERATION OF LAW, STATUTORY OF OTHERWISE, WARRANTIES OF INCLUDING MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR Α PARTICULAR USE. EXCEPT THOSE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH HEREIN.

Issued: November 16, 1999

2.20 Indemnification

The Customer and any End User, jointly and severally, shall indemnify, defend and hold the Company harmless from claims, loss, damage, expense (including attorney's fees and court costs), or liability (including liability for patent infringement) arising from: (1) any claims made against Company by any End User in connection with the delivery or consumption of Services; (2) combining with, or using in connection with facilities the Company furnished, facilities the Customer or End User furnished; or (3) use of facilities the Company furnished in a manner the Company did not contemplate and over which the Company exercises no control. In the event that any infringing use is enjoined, the Customer, at its option and expense, may obtain immediately a dismissal or stay of such injunction, obtain a license or other agreement so as to extinguish the claim of infringement, terminate the claimed infringing use, or modify such combination so as to avoid any such infringement. In addition and without limitation, the Customer and any End Users shall defend, on behalf of the Company and upon request by the Company, any suit brought or claim asserted against the Company for any such claims.

2.21 Maintenance and Testing

- A. Upon suitable notice, the Company may make such tests, adjustments, and inspections as may be necessary to maintain the Company's facilities in satisfactory operating condition. No interruption allowance will be credited to the Customer for the period during which the Company makes such tests, adjustments, or inspections.
- Β. Upon suitable notification to the Customer, and at a reasonable time, the Company may make such tests and inspections as may be necessary to determine that the Customer or End User is complying with the requirements set forth above for the installation, operation, and maintenance of Customer provided facilities, equipment, and wiring in the connection of Customer provided facilities and equipment to Company-owned facilities and equipment. If the protective requirements for Customer-provided equipment are not being complied with, the Company may take such action as it deems necessary to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel. The Company will notify the Customer promptly if there is any need for further corrective action. Within ten (10) days of receiving this notice, the Customer must take such action. If the Customer fails to do this, the Company may take whatever additional action is deemed necessary, including the suspension of Service, to protect its facilities, equipment, and personnel from harm.

Issued: November 16, 1999

By:

2.22 Determination of Jurisdiction of Mixed Interstate and Intrastate Service

When mixed interstate and intrastate Service is provided over a dedicated facility, the jurisdiction will be determined as follows:

- 1. If the Customer's estimate of the intrastate traffic on the Service equals 10% or more of the total traffic on that Service, the Service will be provided according to the applicable rules and regulations of this tariff.
- 2. If the Customer's estimate of the intrastate traffic on the Service is less than 10% of the total traffic on that Service, the Service will be provided according to the applicable rules and regulations of the Company's interstate tariff.
- 3. If the jurisdiction of interstate traffic on the Service changes to the extent that it alters the jurisdiction of the Service, the Customer must notify the Company of any required change in status. The affected Service will revert to the appropriate jurisdictional tariff within the next full billing cycle. No retroactive rate adjustments will apply to the period prior to the change in the Company's records. Any applicable Term Agreement will be transferred with the jurisdictional change.

SECTION 3. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES

The Company provides data transport between End Users and its Customers using a variety of digital transmission technologies, over the Company's own facilities and/or facilities of other carriers.

Depending on distance from the Company's facilities, Services may not be available to all customers. Special construction charges may apply in each case. Company's Services are data services only and will not be accompanied by 411, 911, or other voice services. In addition to the charges specified for each Service, additional charges may apply for transfers of data per month, at certain times in excess of certain thresholds, or for certain billing, monitoring or other services. Other services may be provided by the Company on an Individual Case Basis, depending on such factors as length of loops involved, quality of loops and other factors.

Issued: November 16, 1999

SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES

Access Services for Interstate Communication Services

Description of Services

The Company provides data transport between End-Users and its Customers using a variety of digital transmission technologies, over the Company's own facilities and/or facilities of other carriers.

Depending on distance from the Company's facilities, service may not be available to all customers. Special construction charges may apply in each case. Company's services are data services only and will not be accompanied by 411, 911, or other voice services. In addition to the charges specified for each service, additional charges may apply for transfers of data per month, at certain times, in excess of certain thresholds, or for certain billing, monitoring or other services. Other services may be provisioned by the company on an individual case basis (ICB), depending on such factors as length of loops involved, quality of loops and other factors.

Issued: November 16, 1999

•

SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES

4.1 Local Loop (per month)

144 kbps IDSL	\$75
160 kbps	\$75
200 kbps	\$90
416 kbps	\$125
784 kbps	\$165
1040 kbps	\$199
1.54 Mbps	\$250

Issued: November 16, 1999

Effective: December 8, 1999

SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES

4.2 Aggregation

Time From	With New Edge Provided	Without DS-3 Link
Interconnection	DS-3 link (up to 25 miles)	
First Month	\$1000	\$500
Second Month	\$2000	\$1000
Third Month	\$3000	\$1750
Fourth Month (After)	\$4000	\$2500
	Note: DS-3 links of more than 25 miles will be priced on an	Note: applies to customers in same collocation space as
	ICB basis.	well as those who purchase or provide their own DS3 interconnection.

Issued: November 16, 1999

Effective: December 8, 1999

SECTION 4. RATES AND CHARGES

4.3 Non-recurring Charges

Standard Installation	\$375
Nonstandard Installation (materials extra)	$375 + 40$ per hour after 2^{nd}
Reschedule visit due to lack of exit	\$95
Standard Inside move	\$150
Non standard in-side move (materials extra)	$150 + 40$ per hour after 2^{nd}
Outside Move	\$375
Cancellation of order—	\$50
within ILEC cancellation period	
Cancellation of order—	\$275
outside ILEC cancellation period	
Site survey (on request)	\$95
Speed Change	\$100
Inside wiring repair (materials extra)	$$95 + $40/hour after 1^{st}$

Issued: November 16, 1999

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA

)

)

)

)

)

IN THE MATTER OF THE FILING BY NEW EDGE NETWORK, INC. D/B/A NEW EDGE NETWORKS FOR APPROVAL OF RELIEF OF CERTIFICATION REQUIREMENT TO POST SURETY BOND ORDER GRANTING AMENDED CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

TC02-019

On September 30, 1999, the Public Utilities Commission (Commission) received an application for a certificate of authority from New Edge Network, Inc. d/b/a New Edge Networks (New Edge).

New Edge sought authority to provide resold and facilities-based competitive local exchange and interexchange services. A proposed tariff was filed by New Edge.

On October 7, 1999, the Commission electronically transmitted notice of the filing and the intervention deadline of October 22, 1999, to interested individuals and entities. No petitions to intervene or comments were filed and at its regularly scheduled November 29, 1999, meeting, the Commission granted New Edge's request for a certificate of authority, subject to rural safeguards, a continuous surety bond, and a waiver of ARSD 20:10:32:03(8).

On January 28, 2002, the Commission received notice that Travelers' Property Casualty Insurance would cancel Bond No. 081S103508175BCM on February 21, 2002. On February 21, 2002, New Edge filed for bond relief. New Edge requested that the requirement to post a continuous \$25,000 bond be removed and agreed to restrictions on its certificate of authority from offering prepaid services and collecting customer deposits and advanced payments.

At its regularly scheduled March 28, 2002, meeting, Staff recommended that the Commission reconsider the terms and conditions of New Edge's certificate of authority to remove the requirement that the certificate of authority be subject to a continuous \$25,000 bond and impose a new restriction that New Edge not offer a prepaid calling card or require deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission.

The Commission finds that it has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to SDCL Chapter 49-31, specifically 49-31-3 and 49-31-69 and ARSD 20:10:24:02, 20:10:24:03 and 20:10:32:03. The Commission finds that New Edge has met the legal requirements established for the granting of an amended certificate of authority. New Edge has, in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and 49-31-71, demonstrated sufficient technical, financial and managerial capabilities to offer telecommunications services in South Dakota.

The Commission approves New Edge's application for an amended certificate of authority, subject to rural safeguards, and subject to the condition that New Edge not offer

a prepaid calling card or require deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission. The amended certificate of authority for New Edge shall authorize it to offer local exchange services in South Dakota, except in those areas served by a rural telephone company. It is therefore

ORDERED, that New Edge's application for an amended certificate of authority to provide interexchange telecommunications services and local exchange services is granted, subject to the removal of the condition of a surety bond, and subject to the condition that New Edge not offer a prepaid calling card or require deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission; and it is

FURTHER ORDERED, that the Commission shall authorize New Edge to offer its local exchange services in South Dakota, except in those areas served by a rural telephone company.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this 4π day of April, 2002

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned hereby certifies that this document has been served today upon all parties of record in this docket, as listed on the docket service list, by facsimile or by first class mail, in properly addressed envelopes, with charges prepaid thereon.
Date: 4/8/02
(OFFICIAL SEAL)

BY ORDER OF THE COMMISSION:

JAMES A. BURG, Chairman

PAM NELSON, Commissioner

Almit

ROBERT K. SAHR, Commissioner

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION

AMENDED CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

To Conduct Business As A Telecommunications Company Within The State of South Dakota

> Authority was Granted as of the date of the Original Order Granting Certificate of Authority Docket No. TC02-019

> > This is to certify that

NEW EDGE NETWORK, INC. D/B/A NEW EDGE NETWORKS

is authorized to provide interexchange telecommunications services, including local exchange services in nonrural areas in South Dakota, subject to the condition that it not offer a prepaid calling card or require deposits or advance payments without prior approval of the Commission.

This certificate is issued in accordance with SDCL 49-31-3 and 49-31-69 and ARSD 20:10:24:02 and 20:10:32:03, and is subject to all of the conditions and limitations contained in the rules and statutes governing its conduct of offering telecommunications services.

Dated at Pierre, South Dakota, this 4π day of April, 2002.

SOUTH DAKOTA PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION:

JAMES A. BURG, Chairman

PAM NELSON, Commissioner

2 phur k

ROBERT K. SAHR, Commissioner

